
Annual Report and Accounts 

2011/12  

Excellent, Compassionate and Safe care  
for every patient, every day 



2



3

Annual Report and 
Accounts 2011/12 

 

Presented to Parliament pursuant to 
Schedule 7, paragraph 25(4) of the 
National Health Service Act 2006  

Liverpool Heart and Chest
Hospital

NHS Foundation Trust



4



5 
 

 
Contents 

 
Chair and Chief Executive’s Foreword      6 
 
Key achievements of 2011/12       7 
 
1. Directors’ report          8 
 

1.1 Business Review and Operating and Financial Review  8 
1.2 Enhanced quality governance reporting      13 
1.3 Any new or significantly revised services     15 
1.4 Working with our Patients and Visitors      15 

 
2. Remuneration report        18 

 
3. Statement of Accounting Officer’s Responsibilities    21 

 
4. NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance     22 

 
4.1 Council of Governors       24 
4.2 Board of Directors         28 
4.3 Audit Committee         32 
4.4 Nominations and Remuneration Committees     33 
4.5 Membership          35 

 
5. Quality report         38 

 
6. Our staff          114 
 
7. Statement as to disclosure to auditors     120 
 
8. Annual Governance Statement      120 

 
9.  Other disclosures in the public interest      127 
 
10. Annual Accounts        128 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6

Chair and Chief Executive’s Foreword
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Key achievements of 2011/12 
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1. Directors report 

FReM

1.1 Business Review and Operating and Financial Review 

Key Business Activities
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'

Analysis of 2011/12 Financial Performance
'

Costs 

Operating 
Surplus

6,338 6,707 370

Surplus 365 588 224
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Net Surplus 2.6* 1.0 0.6 (76.9)

Costs and Cost Improvement Programme

" "

CIPs by Cost Category
Category £000's

Total 5,340
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Capital Investments and Cash flow  

'

2011/12 Capital Programme 
Summary

Category £m

Estate Improvements 2.680

New MR Scanner 1.600

Medical Equipment 1.880

Information Technology 1.840

Total 8.000

Financing 
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Total Borrowing Limit 27.4 1.1 

'

Monitor Key Financial Indicators

Financial Risk Ratings Plan Actual

Weighted Average Rating 3 3 

'

Going Concern

Conclusion

'
'

'

'
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Environmental matters

'

" "

1.2 Enhanced quality governance reporting 

Emergency readmissions
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Clostridium Difficile 

'

'

'

'

Patient care  
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'

1.3 Any new or significantly revised services  

1.4 Working with our Patients and Visitors  
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'

'

Concern
Outcome

Concern
Outcome

Concern
Outcome

Concern
Outcome

Engaging with external organisations  

Improvements in patient/carer information 
'



17

Information on complaints handling 

Stakeholder relations  
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2. Remuneration Report 

Year ended 31st March 2012 

Name and Title 
Salary (Bands of 
£5,000) £000's 

Other 
Remuneration 

(Bands of 
£5,000) £000's 

Benefits in Kind 
(£'s) 

R Jain - Chief Executive                                                                135-140 0-5 5749 
G Russell - Medical Director 25-30 165-170 0 
A Cummins - Director of Finance                                           90-95 0-5 3009 
H Holmes - Director of Nursing                                          95-100 0-5 4008 
M Jackson - Director of Research & Informatics * 10-15 0-5 0 
P N Large - Chair 35-40 0-5 0 
P Firby - Non Executive Director 10-15 0-5 0 
R Toomey - Non Executive Director 10-15 0-5 0 
B Leek - Non Executive Director 10-15 0-5 0 
G Appleton - Non Executive Director                                  10-15 0-5 0 
D Bricknell - Non Executive Director                                       10-15 0-5 0 

        

* M Jackson commenced as Director of Research and Informatics on 1st February 2012 
 

Year ended 31st March 2011  

Name and Title 
Salary (Bands of 
£5,000) £000's 

Other 
Remuneration 

(Bands of 
£5,000) £000's 

Benefits in Kind 
(£'s) 

R Jain - Chief Executive                                                                135-140 0-5 5500 
G Russell - Medical Director 20-25 165-170 0 
A Cummins - Director of Finance                                           90-95 0-5 400 
H Holmes - Director of Nursing                                          95-100 0-5 3200 
P N Large - Chair 35-40 0-5 0 
P Firby - Non Executive Director 10-15 0-5 0 
R Toomey - Non Executive Director 10-15 0-5 0 
B Leek - Non Executive Director 10-15 0-5 0 
G Appleton - Non Executive Director                                  10-15 0-5 0 
D Bricknell - Non Executive Director                                       10-15 0-5 0 
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Name and Title Real increase in 
Pension at age 
60 (bands of 

£2,500) 

Real increase in 
pension lump 

sum at aged 60 
(bands of 
£2,500) 

Total accrued 
pension at age 

60 at 31st 
March 2012 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

Lump sum at 
age 60 related 

to accrued 
pension  at 31st 

March 2012 
(bands of 
£5,000) 

Cash Equivalent 
Transfer Value 
at 31st March 

2012 

Cash Equivalent 
Transfer Value 
at 31st March 

2011 

Real Increase 
/(decrease)in 

Cash Equivalent 
Transfer Value 

Employer’s 
contribution to 

stakeholder 
pension  

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

R Jain - Chief 
Executive 7.5-10 27.5-30 35-40 115-120 677 451 226 0 

        
G Russell - Medical 
Director 2.5-5 10-12.5 50-55 160-165 1086 946 140 0 

        
A Cummins - Director 
of Finance 0-2.5 2.5-5 10-15 30-35 124 80 44 0 

        
H Holmes - Director 
of Nursing 0-2.5 5-7.5 25-30 80-85 376 278 98 0 

M Jackson - Director 
of Research and 
Informatics* 0-2.5 0-2.5 20-25 70-75 441 385 9 0 

* M Jackson commenced as Director of Research and Informatics on 1st February 2012 

Cash Equivalent Transfer Values 



Real Increase in CETV 

Pay Multiples 



3. Statement of Accounting Officer’s Responsibilities 

Statement of the chief executive's responsibilities as the accounting 
officer of Liverpool Heart and Chest Hospital NHS Foundation Trust  

NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer 
Memorandum 

NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 

NHS 
Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 

NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer 
Memorandum



4. NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance 

" onal"

'

'
" ".

'



'
'

'

'



4.1 Council of Governors

Role and Composition



Governor Development

'



Elections  

Constituency / Class No.
seats 

Governor/s elected 

Public:
Debbie Mawson

Paula Pattullo

Roy Stott

Michael Brereton

Judith Wright

Caroline Jackson

Staff:
Christine Bell

David Foulkes

Governor Attendance at Council of Governor Meetings 2011/12 

Governor Name Council of Governor Meeting Dates 2011/12



6th June 
2011

26th

September 
2011

5th December 
2011

5th March 
2012

Public Constituency
Merseyside 

Cheshire

North Wales

Rest of England and Wales 

Staff Constituency
Registered Nurses and Non-Registered Nurses 

Non Clinical

Allied Health Professionals, Technical and Scientific

Registered Medical Practitioners 

Nominated Governors: 



Governor Name Council of Governor Meeting Dates 2011/12
6th June 

2011
26th

September 
2011

5th December 
2011

5th March 
2012

4.2 Board of Directors 

Role and Composition  

'



Name Position Date appointed Expiry of 



current term of 
office 

Qualified 
accountant and 
diverse NHS 
career spanning 40 
years 

Registered nurse  
with 25 years’
experience in 
nurse education,
MSc in Social 
Research Methods 

Qualified 
accountant and 
doctorate in 
economic history 
with experience of 
board level roles in 
a number of private 
sector 
organisations

BSC in 
Mathematics and 
Fellow of Institute 
of Actuaries with 
10 years senior 
level experience in 
the financial 
industry.

Master in 
Research and PhD 
in strategic 
decision making 
with a career in the 
legal industry.

LLB (Hons) and 
MA in Criminology 
with extensive 
experience in legal 
and personnel 
roles.



'

Name Position 

BA (Hons) with previous NHS Board level 
experience as Executive Director for Workforce 
and Service Improvement and FT Project 
Director at Salford Royal NHS FT.

Consultant Anaesthetist (Member of Liverpool 
Society of Anaesthetists) with extensive 
experience in cardiac anaesthesia both in the UK 
and overseas.

MA (distinction), BA (Hons), Dip HE  and 
Registered Nurse. Previous roles have included 
Deputy Director of Nursing at Salford Royal 
NHSFT and Acting Director of Nursing at the 
Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University 
Hospital Trust. Awarded Florence Nightingale 
Scholarship in 2010.

BA(Hons); CPFA with previous experience at a 
senior level holding Deputy Director of Finance 
posts at Robert Jones and Agnes Hunt as well as 
this Trust prior to being promoted to Director of 
Finance. 

(w.e.f 31st January 2012)
BSc(Hons); PhD. Previous roles in medical 
research prior to joining the Trust where a 
number of roles in research and quality have 
been held prior to being promoted to Director of 
Research and Informatics.



Attendance at Board of Director Meetings 2011/12  

Director 26th

April 
2011

21st

May 
2011

6th

June
2011*

26th

July 
2011

21st

October 
2011

29th

November 
2011

16th

December 
2011*

31st

January 
2012

27th

March 
2012
X

X

X

X

X

Additional meetings called pursuant to paragraph 4.3.2 of the Standing Orders for the 
Practice and Procedure of the Board of Directors 

4.3 Audit Committee 

Attendance at Audit Committee meetings 2011/12

Member 19th

April 
2011

6th

June 
2011

19th

July 
2011

11th

Oct
2011

21st

Nov 
2011

17th

Jan
2012

19th

March 
2012

X

X
X X



'

'

,

4.4 Nominations and Remuneration Committees

Nominations & Remuneration Committee (Non-Executive) 



Nominations & Remuneration Committee (Executive)  

Member 16.12.11 27.3.12 
x



'

4.5 Membership 



" "

Membership strategy 

'
" "



Membership profile 
 
Constituency

Public Constituency As at 1st April 
2011

As at 31st

March 2012
Increase/Decrease 

(%)
Cheshire 2,250 2,305 +2%

Merseyside 4,842 5,005 +3%

North Wales 1,778 1,859 +16%

Rest of England and 
Wales

804 700 -13%

Total – Public 
Constituency

9,674 10,057 +4%

Staff Constituency 1,305 1,320 +1%



5. Quality report 
Introduction to Liverpool Heart and Chest 
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 



Quality Account Summary 

five



Part 1:  Statement on Quality from the Chief 
Executive Officer 

“Excellent, compassionate and safe care for every patient every day”



Key Achievements in 2011/12 





Part 2:  Priorities for Improvement and 
Statements of Assurance from the Board 

Priority One: Reduce the number of deaths in-hospital



'





Priority Two: Improve the assessment of, and reduce the risk of, blood 
clot (venous thromboembolism) 



 Part 
2, Review of Services, Goals Agreed with Commissioners



Priority Three: Ensure diabetic patients are referred to the Diabetes 
Specialist Nurse before their planned operation.



Part 2, Priorities for 2012/13, Priority Two: Improve the 
coverage of outpatients receiving a blood sugar test)



Priority Four:  Improve attendance to cardiac rehabilitation classes for 
those patients resident in Knowsley



, ,

'



Priority Five:  Improve the experience of care for our patients

exceeded

all of the time

better than expected 
.





' Part 2
Priorities for  2012/13; Priority Three: Upskill our staff to deliver 
excellent clinical care



Project Progress



'





Priority Six:  Reduce rates of readmission to our hospital and to those 
with whom we work 

'





this

Priority One:  Improve the experience of care for our patients 

'

additional 

Priority Two: Improve the coverage of outpatients receiving a blood 
sugar test 



Priority Three: Upskill our staff to deliver excellent clinical care 

Part 2, Review of priorities from 
2011/12, Priority five: Improve the experience of care for our patients



'



Priority Four: Improve the assessment of quality of life in our heart 
disease patients 





Priority Three.  Upskill our staff to deliver excellent clinical care. 





Table 1 

Name of audit
Eligible to 

participate?
Yes / No

If No:  reason
If Yes and not participating : reason

If Yes and participating % cases 
submitted

Peri-and Neo-natal

Children

Acute care



Name of audit
Eligible to 

participate?
Yes / No

If No:  reason
If Yes and not participating : reason

If Yes and participating % cases 
submitted

Long term conditions

Elective procedures



Name of audit
Eligible to 

participate?
Yes / No

If No:  reason
If Yes and not participating : reason

If Yes and participating % cases 
submitted

Cardiovascular disease

Renal disease

Cancer

Trauma



Name of audit
Eligible to 

participate?
Yes / No

If No:  reason
If Yes and not participating : reason

If Yes and participating % cases 
submitted

Psychological conditions

Blood transfusion

Health promotion

End of life

Total: 51 16



Other National Clinical audits  

Audit Title 
Participated 

2011/12 % cases submitted 

National Inpatient Survey

National Outpatient Survey

National Confidential Enquiries 2011-12  
National Confidential Enquiries 

Study title Eligible to 
participate
Yes / No

If No: reason
If Yes: % cases submitted

Patient Outcome and Death (NCEPOD)

National inpatient survey 



National outpatient survey 

" " " "

" "

Lung cancer (National Lung Cancer Audit) 

National Heart Failure Audit 2010/11 

The National Diabetes Audit 2010 

ICNARC annual report (published April 2011)  



Emergency use of oxygen 2011 (British Thoracic Society)  

Bronchiectasis (British Thoracic Society)  

  
2011 Re-audit of Bedside Transfusion Practice

National Confidential Enquiry Reports 
Centre for Maternal and Child Enquiries (CMACE)

National Confidential Inquiry into Suicide and Homicide by People with Mental Illness 
(NCISH)



NCEPOD reports 

Surgery in Children Report ‘Are We There Yet’?

Peri-operative Care Report ‘Knowing the Risk’

The reports of 65 local clinical audits were reviewed by the provider in 
2011/12 and Liverpool Heart and Chest NHS Foundation Trust intends to 
take the following actions to improve the quality of healthcare provided.   

 (

  



'



'

UK L S UKLS

R I C
E

A d U
READ-ICU

Clostridium difficile



P R O M s PROMs

patient

service

'



'



'

'



o
o

o
o

o

NHS Number and General Medical Practice Code Validity  

.

Information Governance Toolkit attainment levels  

'

" "

" "



Clinical coding error rate 



Part 3: Review of Quality Performance (provider 
determination) 



Quantitative Metrics
Safety
Metric Organisation Wide or 

Service Specific
Derived From Why metric chosen

How is data 
collected

Improvements planned

LHCH 
Performance 
2011/12

LHCH 
Performance
2010/11

Interpretation 
of Results



Safety
Metric Organisation Wide or 

Service Specific
Derived From Why metric chosen

How is data 
collected

Improvements planned

LHCH 
Performance 
2011/12

LHCH 
Performance
2010/11

Interpretation 
of Results



Safety
Metric Organisation Wide 

or Service Specific

Derived From Why metric chosen

How is data 
collected

Improvements 
planned

LHCH 
Performance 
2011/12

LHCH 
Performance
2010/11

Interpretation 
of Results



Effectiveness
Metric Organisation Wide or 

Service Specific

Derived From Why metric chosen

How is data 
collected

Improvements planned

LHCH 
Performance 
2011/12

LHCH 
Performance
2010/11

Interpretation 
of Results



Effectiveness
Metric Organisation 

Wide or Service 
Specific

Derived From Why metric 
chosen

How is data 
collected

Improvements 
planned

LHCH
Performance
2011/12

LHCH 
Performance 
2010/11

Interpretation 
of Results



Effectiveness
Metric Organisation 

Wide or Service 
Specific

Derived From Why metric 
chosen

How is data 
collected

Improvements 
planned

LHCH 
Performance
2011/12

LHCH 
Performance
2010/11

Interpretation 
of Results



Effectiveness
Metric Organisation 

Wide or Service 
Specific

Derived From Why metric 
chosen

How is data 
collected

Improvements 
planned

LHCH 
Performance
2011/12 Q4

LHCH 
Performance
2010/11
Q4

Interpretation 
of Results



Patient Experience
Metric Organisation 

Wide or Service 
Specific

Derived From Why metric 
chosen

How is data 
collected

Improvements 
planned

LHCH 2011/12 LHCH 2010/11

Interpretation 
of Results



Patient Experience
Metric Organisation 

Wide or 
Service 
Specific

Derived From Why metric 
chosen

How is data 
collected

Improvements 
planned

LHCH 
Performance
2011/12

LHCH
Performance
2010/11

Interpretation 
of Results



Patient Experience
Metric Organisation 

Wide or 
Service 
Specific

Derived From Why metric 
chosen

How is data 
collected

Improvements 
planned

LHCH 
Performance
2011/12

LHCH
Performance
2009/10

Interpretation 
of Results



Patient Experience
Metric Organisation Wide or 

Service Specific
Derived From Why metric chosen

How is data 
collected

Improvements planned

LHCH 
Performance 
2011/12

LHCH 
Performance
2010/11

Interpretation 
of Results



Qualitative Findings  



Themes in Common with our Priorities Arising from Complaints 



Metrics against Department of Health national priorities  

National Targets and Regulatory Requirements Target
2011/12

2011/12 Target 2010/11 2010/11
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Statements of Local Involvement Networks (LINkS), 
Overview & Scrutiny Committees and Primary Care 
Trusts 

As Director for Service Improvement and Executive Nurse for NHS Merseyside I
believe that the account represents a fair and balanced view of the 2011/12 progress 
that Liverpool Heart and Chest NHS Foundation Trust has made against the 
identified quality standards. The Trust has complied with its contractual obligations 
and has made good progress over the last year with evidence of improvements in 
key quality & safety measures. 

In line with the NHS (Quality Accounts) Regulations 2011,  NHS Merseyside can 
confirm that we have reviewed the information contained within the account and 
checked this against data sources where this is available to us as part of existing 
contract/performance monitoring discussions and is accurate in relation to the 
services provided. We have reviewed the content of the account and can confirm 
that this complies with the prescribed information, form and content as set out by the 
Department of Health.  

Liverpool Heart and Chest NHS Foundation Trust has taken positive steps to engage
with patients, staff and stakeholders in developing a comprehensive set of quality 
priorities and measures. NHS Merseyside has an excellent relationship with the 
Trust and recognises their commitment to working closely with Clinical 
Commissioning Group to ensure the ongoing delivery of high quality services. 

Overall NHS Merseyside welcomes the vision described within the Quality Accounts, 
agrees on the priority areas and will continue to work with Trust to improve the 
quality of services provided to patients. NHS Merseyside is supportive of the process
Liverpool Heart and Chest NHS Foundation Trust has taken to engage with patients, 
staff and stakeholders in developing a set of quality priorities and measures for 
2011/12 and applaud their continued commitment to improvement. 

Trish Bennett 
Director of Service Improvement & Executive Nurse 
NHS Merseyside 
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Liverpool LINk - Liverpool Heart & Chest Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - 
Quality Account Commentary 2011/12 

Liverpool LINk once again welcomes the opportunity to comment on Liverpool Heart 
& Chest Hospital NHS Foundation Trust's Quality Account. 

We would like to congratulate the Trust on its achievements during 2011/12 and are 
particularly pleased to note that the Trust has been rated top performing Trust in the 
country for the past six years for the quality of overall patient care.

The Quality Account document is reasonably easy to read and understand, however 
some of the graphs could benefit from a little more explanatory text to make them 
more accessible to the public who are not all used to reading graphs. This would 
also help to compensate for the fact that some of the text on some of the graphs is 
rather small and hard to read. During our engagement with the Trust regarding this 
Quality Account, Liverpool LINk asked that the public be explicitly referred to as well 
as patients in terms of engagement. This suggestion was welcomed by Officers from 
the Trust and should be reflected in the completed document. 

We are pleased to note that the Trust has met 5 of the priorities that it chose last 
year.  Our attention was also drawn to Priority 5: Improving the experience of care 
for patients. It is clear that the Trust achieved very high levels of performance for 
each and every indicator but were 2% under target for patients agreeing staff really 
know what they are doing.  The fact that this feedback has influenced the choice of 
priorities for next year’s quality account is commendable as it demonstrates the use 
of the patient feedback data in informing future plans (see Part 2, Priorities for  
2012/13; Priority Three: Upskill our staff to deliver excellent clinical care).  We are 
also reassured that remedial action for the 6th priority “Reducing Rates of 
readmission” will take place, and we look forward to the Trust making more progress 
regarding the 6th priority in the coming year.  

Liverpool LINk is also pleased to note that only one of this year’s priorities is also 
supported by a Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) target. As 
CQUINs are already incentivised by commissioners, therefore Liverpool LINk views 
non-CQUIN Quality Account Priorities as adding yet further value to the Trust’s
activities.  

Liverpool LINk has two members designated to engage with Liverpool Heart & Chest 
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust on an ongoing basis. These LINk members have 
engaged closely with the Trust to inform this commentary and they will be interested 
to monitor progress against the quality priorities chosen for 2012/13. 

We also hope to continue to be involved in patient and public engagement and 
consultation activities, particularly around quality priorities. 

Dr. Eric Toke and John Roberts, Liverpool LINk 
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The Adult Social Care and Health Select Committee noted the quality accounts 
without specific comments. This will be recorded in the minutes of the Select 
Committee when it meets on 12th June. 

Peter Seddon, Legal Services, Liverpool City Council

The Quality Account Task and Finish Group have continued to meet throughout the 
year with our members and the public. We have reviewed the Quality Accounts 
2011/12 for the Trust and are confident they are an accurate representation of the 
Trust performance in 2011/12. 

We had a very well attended public meeting to discuss the work of the hospital which 
included clinicians, stakeholders, staff, patients and their families, together with 
members of the public from North Wales and the Isle of Man.

It was also from this meeting that the programme of work was chosen for 
consideration for the coming year. I am sure the whole organisation will respond to 
the challenges presented to them by the cuts and demands of Government and the 
patients, in the future. As a group, we are confident that the targets and aspirations 
will be achieved in the coming months.

Ken Blasbery, Chair.
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Enabling Quality Management Systems 

Workforce Factors 

Staff Engagement 

"
"

'

Year 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
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2010/11 2011/12  

Top 4 Ranking 
Scores 

Trust National 
Average 

Trust National 
Average 

Trust 
Improvement/ 
Deterioration

KF8. Percentage 
of staff working 
extra hours

KF14. 
Percentage of 
staff appraised 
with personal 
development 
plans in last 12 
months

KF18. 
Percentage of 
staff suffering 
work-related 
stress in last 12 
months

KF28. Impact of 
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2010/11 2011/12  

Top 4 Ranking 
Scores 

Trust National 
Average 

Trust National 
Average 

Trust 
Improvement/ 
Deterioration

health and well-
being on ability 
to perform work 
or daily 
activities

2010/11 2011/12 Trust 
Improvement/ 
Deterioration 

Bottom 4 
Ranking Scores 

Trust National 
Average 

Trust National 
Average 

KF21. 
Percentage of 
staff reporting 
errors, near 
misses or 
incidents 
witnessed in the
last month
KF23. 

Percentage of 
staff 
experiencing 
physical 
violence from 
patients, 
relatives or the
public in last 12 
months

KF29. 
Percentage of 
staff feeling 
pressure in last 
3 months to 
attend work 
when feeling
Unwell

KF9. 
Percentage of 
staff using 
flexible working 
options
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'

" "

Staff Health and Wellbeing 
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Staff Survey Questions 2008 2009 2010 2011

Planning and Developing the Workforce 
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Metric 2008/9 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12

 

Leadership
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" "

Membership and Volunteers 

'

" "



108

Quality of the Environment in which Care is Delivered 

Links between Quality and Resources 
Information Resources – Quality in Measurement  
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'

Aligning Quality and your Wider Business Strategy   



110
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o

o
o

o

o
o

o

How to Provide Feedback on the Quality Account 
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A Vision for Patient Experience  
April 2013 

“Why go anywhere else?”
“Even before I arrived at the hospital entrance I knew I was going to be in safe 
hands.  Everyone says Liverpool Heart and Chest is a great hospital but what 
greeted me that day still took me by surprise.   

The appointment had been arranged to fit in with my schedule and I’d already 
received a Welcome Pack telling me what to expect from arrival to discharge, 
but walking into the state-of-the-art building and being met personally by 
someone who was there just for me took this far beyond a “typical hospital 
visit”.  

“They were 
expecting me”

From the named Support Nurse who will be at the other end of the phone whenever needed, to 
spending time with the world-class Consultant explaining personally what will happen in the 
procedure; From the Patient Contract that outlines exactly what our patients can expect throughout 
their stay, to the agreed Aftercare Plan that allows them to return home feeling safe and secure; 

Our Vision is for patients to feel that: “My care was planned with me and for me”

Our vision is 100% inclusion; making our patients and their families 
feel involved in every step of their tests and treatment.  We want to 
alleviate as much fear as possible, ensuring patients feel 
comfortable and supported throughout their stay and simply taking 
the time to chat to them because we know it makes a difference. 

“They made me feel 
special.”

“They really know what 
they were doing“

You don’t win accolades such as ‘Best Overall Patient Care in 
England’ without getting a lot of things right, but now we want to 
take things to another level. Not only offering clinical excellence and 
first rate patient care, but nutritious food that promotes recovery in 
an environment that is clean and modern, infection free, easily 
accessible, smartly decorated and with satellite TV - in fact, 
something akin to a five-star hotel that happens to offer the very 
best cardiothoracic care in the UK.

“After I got home I imagined that every twinge or feeling of discomfort was going to send me 
back into hospital but I was able to speak to my Support Nurse who was happy to answer all my 
questions and concerns. Being able to talk to such a dedicated and knowledgably member of 
staff relieved all my fears and I was able to continue my rehabilitation with peace of mind, 
knowing that LHCH staff would be there for me”.

“Their support really did continue and my quality of life got better.”
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6.  Staff 

Our vision for staff 

"
" Excellent, Compassionate 

and Safe care for every patient every day
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'

Recognising our talented staff 
" ' "

many

'

Learning and Development 

Staff Satisfaction 
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2010 2011 Trust 
improvement / 
deterioration

Response rate Trust National 
average

Trust National 
average

2010 2011 Trust improvement 
/ deterioration

Top four ranking scores Trust National 
average

Trust National 
average

2010 2011 Trust improvement 
/ deterioration

Bottom four ranking 
scores

Trust National 
average

Trust National 
average
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Workforce Key Performance Indicators

No. of Staff Sickness 
Absence 
2011/12

Appraisal 
Coverage

Mandatory 
Training

Turnover

4.45% 79% 83% 7.4%

Target 3.6% 85% 85% 10%
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Equality, Diversity and Human Rights 

a strong submission with clear plans to progress 
forward”.

Demographic Workforce Profile

2010/11 2011/12 %
Age Band

16 - 20
21 - 25
26 - 30
31 - 35
36 - 40
41 - 45
46 - 50
51 - 55
56 - 60
61 - 65
66 - 70
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71 & above
Ethnicity

White
Mixed

Asian or Asian British
Black or Black British

Other
Not Stated

Gender
Male 

Female
Transgender

Recorded Disability

Sexual Orientation
Bisexual

Gay
Heterosexual

Lesbian
Not stated

Religion or Belief
Athiesm
Buddhism
Christianity
Hinduism
Islam
Jainism
Judaism
Other 
Sikhism
Not stated

Total 1,379 1417

Corporate Social Responsibility 
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7. Statement as to disclosure to auditors

'

'

'

8. Annual Governance Statement 

Scope of responsibility 

'

NHS 
Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum. 

The purpose of the system of internal control 

Capacity to handle risk  

Leadership and Accountability
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Training
'
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The Risk and Control Framework  

" "

Information Governance Toolkit Attainment Levels 
'

" "

" "

The Risk and Control Framework

Serious Untoward Incidents 
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Summary of Other Personal Data Related Incidents 

'

'

'
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'

Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources 

'

" "

" "

Annual Quality Report  

NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual. 
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'

' " "
'

'
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Review of effectiveness 

'

'
" "
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Conclusion 

9. Other disclosures in the public interest  

Health and Safety  

Consultations 



















Data entered below will be used throughout the workbook:

Trust name: Liverpool Heart and Chest Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

This year 31st March 2012

Last year 31st March 2011

This year ended 31st March 2012

Last year ended 31st March 2011

This year commencing: 1st April 2011
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2011/12 2010/11

 Restated 

NOTE £000 £000

Revenue
Operating Income 7 102,545 101,323

Other operating revenue 8 4,254 4,836

Operating expenses 11 (104,598) (103,645)

Operating surplus (deficit) 2,201 2,514

Finance costs:
Investment Revenue 17 150 118

Other gains and (losses) 18 0 0

Finance costs 19 (36) (42)

Surplus/(Deficit) for the financial period 2,315 2,590

Public dividend capital dividends payable (1,727) (1,730)

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the period 588 860

Other comprehensive income
Revaluation gains/(losses) and impairment losses on property, plant 

and equipment  819 1,045

Total comprehensive income for the period 1,407 1,905

Income and Operating Surplus are derived from the Foundation Trust's continuing operations

 
The notes on pages 142 to 172 form part of these accounts.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 
31st March 2012
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31st March 
2012

31st March 

2011

4 months to 

31st March 

2010

(restated) (restated)
NOTE £000 £000 £000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 21 61,590 58,386 56,619

Intangible assets 22 995 183 44

Total non-current assets 62,585 58,569 56,663

Current assets
Inventories 28 2,899 4,026 2,803

Trade and other receivables 29 3,655 2,606 3,282

Cash and cash equivalents 32 17,479 17,264 13,708

24,033 23,896 19,793

Non-current assets held for sale 33 0 0 0

Total current assets 24,033 23,896 19,793

Total assets 86,618 82,465 76,456

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 34 (14,427) (12,675) (8,123)

Borrowings 35 (287) (220) (352)

Provisions 41 (917) (670) (720)

Other liabilities 42 (1,622) (1,570) (1,632)

Net current assets/(liabilities) 6,780 8,761 8,966

Total assets less current liabilities 69,365 67,330 65,629

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 35 (798) (170) (374)

Provisions 41 0 0 0

Other liabilities 42 0 0 0

Total assets employed 68,567 67,160 65,255

Financed by taxpayers' equity:
Public dividend capital 62,799 62,799 62,799

Retained earnings (4,039) (5,056) (5,933)

Revaluation reserve 9,807 9,417 8,389

Total Taxpayers' Equity 68,567 67,160 65,255

Signed  Chief Executive Date: 30th May 2012

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT
31st March 2012

The financial statements and notes on pages 138 to 172 were approved by the Board 

on and signed on its behalf by:
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Public dividend 
capital (PDC)

Retained 
earnings

Revaluation 
reserve

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 April 2011 62,799 (5,056) 9,417 67,160
Prior period adjustments 0 0 0 0
Adjustments for Transforming Community Services transactions 0 0 0 0
Restated balance at 1 April 2011 62,799 (5,056) 9,417 67,160

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2011-12

Total Comprehensive Income for the period:

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the period. 0 588 0 588
Net gain on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 0 0 86 86
Net gain on revaluation of intangible assets 0 0 0 0
Net gain on revaluation of financial assets  0 0 0 0
Impairments and reversals 0 0 733 733
Asset disposals 0 0 0 0
Movements on other reserves 0 0 0 0
Transfer between reserves  0 429 (429) 0

Balance at 31st March 2012 62,799 (4,039) 9,807 68,567

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2010-11
Balance at 1 April 2010 62,799 (6,909) 7,999 63,889
Prior period adjustment 0 976 390 1,366
Total Comprehensive Income for the period:

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the period. 0 860 0 860
Net gain on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 0 0 264 264
Net gain on revaluation of intangible assets 0 0 0 0
Net gain on revaluation of financial assets  0 0 0 0
Impairments and reversals 0 0 781 781
Asset disposals 0 73 (73) 0
Movements on other reserves 0 (56) 56 0
Transfer between reserves  0 0 0 0

Balance at 31st March 2011 62,799 (5,056) 9,417 67,160

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS' EQUITY
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for period ended 
31st March 2012

for period ended 
31st March 2011

NOTE £000 £000

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating surplus/(deficit) 2,201 2,514

Depreciation and amortisation 4,467 5,153

Impairments 39 671

Reversal of impairments (96) (988)

Transfer from donated asset reserve 0 14

Dividends accrued and not paid or received 0
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (1,032) 561

(Increase)/decrease in inventories 1,127 (1,223)

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 1,914 3,310

Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities 52 524

Increase/(decrease) in provisions 41 247 (50)

Tax (paid)/received 0 0

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 8,919 10,486

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 150 118

Purchase of Intangible assets (870) 
(Payments) for property, plant and equipment 21 (6,899) (5,055)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities (7,619) (4,937)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing 1,300 5,549

Cash flows from financing activities
Capital element of finance leases 695 (336)

Interest element of finance lease (36) (42)

PDC dividend paid (1,744) (1,615)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing (1,085) (1,993)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 215 3,556

Cash (and) cash equivalents (and bank overdrafts) at the beginning of the financial year 17,264 13,708
Cash (and) cash equivalents (and bank overdrafts) at the end of the financial year 32 17,479 17,264

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31st March 2012
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. Accounting Policies
Monitor has directed that the financial statements of NHS foundation trusts shall meet the accounting 

requirements of the FT ARM which shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial 

statements have been prepared in accordance with the FT ARM 2011/12 issued by Monitor. The accounting 

policies contained in that manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and HM Treasury’s 

FReM to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to NHS foundation trusts. The accounting policies 

have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts.

1.1 Accounting Convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation 

of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial 

liabilities.

1.2 Prior Period Comparatives

There has been a national exercise to restate 2010/11 final accounts for the impact of the removal of the 

Donated asset reserve and the Government grant reserve. Prior year comparatives have been amended to 

reflect the impact of this restatement.

1.3 Acquisition and Discontinued Operations

Activities are considered to be 'acquired' only if they are taken on from outside the public sector. Activities are 

considered to be 'discontinued' only if they cease entirely. They are not considered to be 'discontinued' if they 

transfer from one public body to another.

1.4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Foundation Trust's accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, 

estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent 

from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other 

factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates and the estimates and 

underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the 

period in which the estimate is revised if the revision effects only that period or in the period of the revision and 

future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

 

1.4.1 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that management 

has made in the process of applying the Foundation Trust's accounting policies and that have the most 

significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

True and Fair View

NHS financial statements should give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the reporting body at the end 

of the financial year and of the results of the year.

Section 393 of the Companies Act 2006 requires that directors must not approve accounts unless they are 

satisfied that they give a true and fair view.

Going Concern

The Accounts have been prepared on the basis that the Foundation Trust is a Going Concern and will be in the 

foreseeable future.

Compliant with the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual

The Financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 2011/12 Foundation Trust Annual 

Reporting Manual (FTARM). The Accounting Policies contained in the FT ARM apply International Financial 

Reporting Standards as adapted or interpreted for an NHS Foundation Trust.  
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Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

1.4.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 

end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of 

assets and liabilities within the next financial year  

The Foundation Trust has made assumptions in the following areas where there is an element of uncertainty.

Income - The Foundation Trust income is largely derived from the contracts it has with its principal commissioners with 

a significant amount being earned under the Payment by Results (PbR) rules and guidelines set by the Department of 

Health. Under PbR, income is based upon the activity recorded by the Foundation Trust and agreed with the 

Commissioner in accordance with the national timetable for agreeing contract income. The Foundation Trust has 

based this part of its income on the amounts agreed with the commissioning organisation or where not yet agreed, on 

its estimate of the activity and the related national tariff or where relevant locally agreed prices.

Income from the sale of non-current assets is recognised only when all material conditions of sale have been met, and 

is measured as the sums due under the sale contract.

Asset Valuation - The Foundation Trust appointed an independent valuer to value its land and buildings at March 31st 

2012. This was mainly a "good housekeeping" exercise with the exception of the detailed valuation of the 10 bedded 

extension to Cedar ward.The valuation has been undertaken in accordance with the requirements of IAS16 Property, 

Plant and Equipment. These values have been reflected in the accounts. 

Provisions - The Foundation Trust has made provisions for potential claims in respect of Equal Pay legislation under 

Agenda for Change under the Sex Discrimination Act. A test case on this issue was held in November 2008 and 

dismissed the claim made. The decision however may be subject to appeal. The provision has been retained pending 

the outcome of the appeal.

Short term employee benefits  - The Foundation Trust has calculated a provision for untaken holiday pay which was 

based on a 90% sample of all employees in 2009/10. The Foundation Trust has recalculated a provision for 2011/12 

which is based on a sample of 15% of staff which has confirmed that the original holiday pay accrual is adequate.

1.5

Income in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs and is 

measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable. The main source of income for the Foundation Trust is from 

contracts with commissioners in respect of healthcare services. Revenue relating to patient care spells that are part-

completed at the year-end is calculated and where material is apportioned across the financial years on the basis of 

length of stay at the end of the reporting period compared to expected total length of stay.

Where income is received for a specific activity which is to be delivered in the following financial year, that income is 

deferred. 

Interest revenue is derived from balances held with the Government Banking Services and on short term deposits with 

commercial banks. All investments have been undertaken in accordance with the Foundation Trust's Treasury 

Management Policy.

1.6

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is received from 

employees. The cost of annual leave entitlement earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is 

recognised in the financial statements to the extent that employees are permitted to carry-forward leave into the 

following period. 
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Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pension Scheme. The scheme is an unfunded, 

defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction 

of Secretary of State, in England and Wales. It is not possible for the NHS Foundation Trust to identify its share of the 

underlying scheme liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as a defined contribution scheme. 

Employers pension cost contributions are charged to operating expenses as and when they become due. 

Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements are not funded by the scheme except where the retirement 

is due to ill-health. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to operating expenses at the time 

the Foundation Trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method or timing of payment. 

Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that they have been received, and is 

measured at the fair value of those goods and services. Expenditure is recognised in operating expenses except 

where it results in the creation of a non-current asset such as property, plant and equipment. 

Recognition 

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised where: 

• it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes; 

• it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the                                       

Foundation Trust; 

• it is expected to be used for more than one financial year; and 

• the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

• the item has cost of at least £5,000; or 

• Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, where 

the assets are functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have 

simultaneous disposal dates and are under single managerial control; or

• Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit, irrespective of their 

individual or collective cost.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives 

e.g. plant and equipment, then these components are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own 

useful economic lives. 

Valuation 

All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, representing the costs directly attributable to 

acquiring or constructing the asset and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 

management. All assets are measured subsequently at fair value. 

Land and buildings used for the Foundation Trust’s services or for administrative purposes are stated in the statement 

of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent 

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that 

carrying amounts are not materially different from those that would be determined at the end of the reporting period. 

Fair values are determined as follows:

 Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use

 Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost



Liverpool Heart and Chest Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Accounts 31st March 2012

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

Until 31st March 2008, the depreciated replacement costs of specialised assets have been estimated for an exact 

replacement of the asset in its present location. HM Treasury has adopted a standard approach to depreciated 

replacement cost valuations based on modern equivalent assets and, where it would meet the location requirements 

of the service being provided, an alternative site can be valued. HM Treasury has agreed that NHS Trusts and 

Foundation Trusts must apply these new valuation requirements by 1st April 2010 at the latest. The NHS Foundation 

Trust has revalued its Estate on 31st March 2010, 31st March 2011 and 31st March 2012 under this method.

Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any impairment 

loss. Cost includes professional fees but not borrowing costs, which are recognised as expenses immediately, as 

allowed by IAS 23 for assets held at fair value. Assets are revalued and depreciation commences when they are 

brought into use.

Until 31st March 2008, fixtures and equipment were carried at replacement cost, as assessed by indexation and 

deprecation of historic cost. From 1st April 2008 indexation has ceased. The carrying value of existing assets at that 

date will be written off over their remaining useful lives and new fixtures and equipment are carried at depreciated 

historic cost as this is not considered to be materially different from fair value.  

An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it reverses an impairment for the 

same asset previously recognised in expenditure, in which case it is credited to expenditure to the extent of the 

decrease previously charged there. In accordance with IAS 16 (Property, Plant and Equipment) this credit is limited as 

the reversal cannot exceed the previous impairment charge net of additional depreciation chargeable on the 

unimpaired asset. A transfer is made between the revaluation reserve and retained earnings to adjust for excess 

depreciation being the difference between depreciation on the carrying (actual) value and its historic cost. 

A revaluation decrease is recognised as an impairment charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a 

balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation 

reserve are reported as other comprehensive income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Subsequent Expenditure
Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an increase in the 

carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that additional future economic benefits or service potential deriving 

from the cost incurred to replace a component of such item will flow to the Foundation Trust and the cost of the item 

can be determined reliably. Where a component of an asset is replaced, the cost of the replacement is capitalised if it 

meets the criteria for recognition above. The carrying amount of the part replaced is de-recognised. Other expenditure 

that does not generate additional future economic benefits or service potential, such as repairs and maintenance, is 

charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which it is incurred. 

Intangible assets

Recognition 

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance which are capable of being sold separately 

from the rest of the Foundation Trust’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They are 

recognised only where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the 

Foundation Trust and where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably, and where the cost is at least £5,000. 

Internally Generated Intangible Assets 
Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at fair value.  Software that is integral to the operating of 

hardware, for example an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item of property, plant and 

equipment.  Software that is not integral to the operation of hardware, for example application software, is capitalised 

as an intangible asset.  Expenditure on research is not capitalised: it is recognised as an operating expense in the 

period in which it is incurred.  Internally-generated assets are recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been 

demonstrated:



Liverpool Heart and Chest Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Accounts 31st March 2012

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

• the project is technically feasible to the point of completion and will result in an intangible asset for sale or use; 

• the Foundation Trust intends to complete the asset and sell or use it; 

• the Foundation Trust has the ability to sell or use the asset; 

• how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic or service delivery benefits e.g. the presence of a 

market for it or its output, or where it is to be used for internal use, the usefulness of the asset; 

• adequate financial, technical and other resources are available to the Foundation Trust to complete the 

development and sell or use the asset; and 

• the Foundation Trust can measure reliably the expenses attributable to the asset during development

 Software
Software which is integral to the operation of hardware e.g. an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant 

item of property, plant and equipment. Software which is not integral to the operation of hardware e.g. application 

software, is capitalised as an intangible asset. 

Measurement 
The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from 

the date when the criteria above are initially met. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, 

the expenditure is recognised in the period in which it is incurred.   

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at fair value by reference to an active market, or, where no 

active market exists, at amortised replacement cost (modern equivalent assets basis), indexed for relevant price 

increases, as a proxy for fair value. Internally-developed software is held at historic cost to reflect the opposing 

effects of increases in development costs and technological advances. 

Intangible assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or ‘fair value less costs to sell’. 

Amortisation 
Intangible assets are amortised over their expected useful economic lives in a manner consistent with the 

consumption of economic or service delivery benefits. 

Depreciation

Freehold land and properties under construction, and assets held for sale are not depreciated.

Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged to write off the costs or valuation of property, plant and 

equipment and intangible non-current assets, less any residual value, over their estimated useful lives, in a manner 

that reflects the consumption of economic benefits or service potential of the assets.  The estimated useful life of an 

asset is the period over which the Foundation Trust expects to obtain economic benefits or service potential from the 

asset. This is specific to the Foundation Trust and may be shorter than the physical life of the asset itself. Estimated 

useful lives and residual values are reviewed each year end, with the effect of any changes recognised on a 

prospective basis.  Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of estimated useful lives and 

lease contract term, based on the Capital Value at inception of the Lease, less any residual values (which are 

transferred back to the lessor).

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their remaining useful economic lives in a manner 

consistent with the consumption of economic or service delivery benefits. Freehold land is considered to have an 

infinite life and is not depreciated. 

Property, plant and equipment which has been reclassified as ‘Held for Sale’ ceases to be depreciated upon the 

reclassification. Assets in the course of construction and residual interests in off-Statement of Financial Position PFI 

contract assets are not depreciated until the asset is brought into use or reverts to the Foundation Trust, respectively. 
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Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revaluation Gains and Losses

Revaluation losses are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is an available balance for the 

asset concerned, and thereafter are charged to operating expenses. 

Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as 

an item of ‘other comprehensive income’. 

Impairments 

At each reporting period end, the Foundation Trust checks whether there is any indication that any of its tangible or 

intangible non-current assets have suffered an impairment loss.  If there is indication of an impairment loss, the 

recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine whether there has been a loss and, if so, its amount.  

Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually.  

An impairment arising from a loss of economic benefit or service potential is reversed when, and to the extent that, 

the circumstances that gave rise to the loss is reversed. Reversals are recognised in operating income to the extent 

that the asset is restored to the carrying amount it would have had if the impairment had never been recognised. Any 

remaining reversal is recognised in the revaluation reserve. Where, at the time of the original impairment, a transfer 

was made from the revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure reserve, an amount is transferred back to the 

revaluation reserve when the impairment reversal is recognised.

Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses. Reversals of ‘other impairments’ are treated as revaluation 

gains. 

De-recognition

Assets intended for disposal are reclassified as ‘Held for Sale’ once all of the following criteria are met: 

•   the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms which are usual and 

customary for such sales; 

•   the sale must be highly probable i.e.: 

• management are committed to a plan to sell the asset; 

• an active programme has begun to find a buyer and complete the sale; 

• the asset is being actively marketed at a reasonable price; 

• the sale is expected to be completed within 12 months of the date of classification as ‘Held for Sale’; and 

• the actions needed to complete the plan indicate it is unlikely that the plan will be dropped or significant changes 

made to it. 

Following reclassification, the assets are measured at the lower of their existing carrying amount and their ‘fair value 

less costs to sell’. Depreciation ceases to be charged. Assets are de-recognised when all material sale contract 

conditions have been met. 

Property, plant and equipment which is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as ‘Held for 

Sale’ and instead is retained as an operational asset and the asset’s economic life is adjusted. The asset is de-

recognised when scrapping or demolition occurs. 

The Foundation Trust does not currently hold any assets which are classified as held for sale 

Revaluation gains are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the extent that, they reverse a 

revaluation decrease that has previously been recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised 

in operating income. 

In accordance with the FT ARM, impairments that are due to a loss of economic benefits or service potential in the 

asset are charged to operating expenses. A compensating transfer is made from the revaluation reserve to the 

income and expenditure reserve of an amount equal to the lower of (i) the impairment charged to operating 

expenses; and (ii) the balance in the revaluation reserve attributable to that asset before the impairment. 
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Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs  are recognised as expenses as they are incurred

Donated Assets 

Following the accounting policy change outlined in the Treasury FREM for 2011-12, a donated asset reserve is no 

longer maintained. Donated non-current assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt, with a matching credit to 

Income. They are valued, depreciated and impaired as described above for purchased assets. Gains and losses on 

revaluations, impairments and sales are as described above for purchased assets. Deferred income is recognised 

only where conditions attached to the donation preclude immediate recognition of the gain.

1.17 Government Grants 

Government grants are grants from Government bodies other than income from primary care trusts or NHS trusts for 

the provision of services. Where a grant is used to fund revenue expenditure it is taken to the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income to match that expenditure.

Following the accounting policy change outlined in the Treasury FREM for 2011-12, a Government grant reserve is 

no longer maintained. The value of assets received by means of a Government grant are credited directly to income. 

Deferred income is recognised only where conditions attached to the grant preclude immediate recognition. 

The Trust does not currently have any Government grants.

Finance Leases 

Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by the NHS Foundation Trust, the 

asset is recorded as property, plant and equipment and a corresponding liability is recorded. The value at which both 

are recognised is the lower of the fair value of the asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments, 

discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. 

The asset and liability are recognised at the commencement of the lease. Thereafter the asset is accounted for as an 

item of property plant and equipment. 

The annual rental is split between the repayment of the liability and a finance cost so as to achieve a constant rate of 

finance over the life of the lease. The annual finance cost is charged to Finance Costs in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income. The lease liability, is de-recognised when the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. 

Operating Leases 
Other leases are regarded as operating leases and the rentals are charged to operating expenses on a straight-line 

basis over the term of the lease. Operating lease incentives received are added to the lease rentals and charged to 

operating expenses over the life of the lease. 

Leases of Land and Buildings 
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building component and the 

classification for each is assessed separately

Inventories 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the First In, First Out (FIFO) method.This is 

considered to be a reasonable approximation to fair value due to the high turnover of stocks.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 

24 hours.  Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are 

readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.  

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on 

demand and that form an integral part of The Foundation Trust’s cash management.



Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

Provisions 

The Foundation Trust recognises a provision where it has a present legal or constructive obligation of uncertain 

timing or amount; for which it is probable that there will be a future outflow of cash or other resources; and a reliable 

estimate can be made of the amount. The amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Position is the best 

estimate of the resources required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is significant, 

the estimated risk-adjusted cash flows are discounted using HM Treasury’s discount rate of 2.2% in real terms, 

except for early retirement provisions and injury benefit provisions which both use the HM Treasury’s pension 

discount rate of 3% (2010/11: 2.9%) in real terms.

The Foundation Trust has made specific provisions for liabilities for third parties legal claims and to issues associated 

with Equal Pay Claims 

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as a provision.  An onerous 

contract is considered to exist where the Trust has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the 

obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it.

A restructuring provision is recognised when the Trust has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and 

has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan 

or announcing its main features to those affected by it.  The measurement of a restructuring provision includes only 

the direct expenditures arsing from the restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by 

the restructuring and not associated with ongoing activities of the entity.

Clinical Negligence Costs 

The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the NHS Foundation Trust pays 

an annual contribution to the NHSLA, which, in return, settles all clinical negligence claims. The contribution is 

charged to expenditure. Although the NHSLA is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases, the legal 

liability remains with the NHS Foundation Trust. The total value of clinical negligence provisions carried by the 

NHSLA on behalf of the NHS Foundation Trust is disclosed at note 41 but is not recognised in the NHS Foundation 

Trust’s accounts. 

Non-Clinical Risk Pooling 

The NHS Foundation Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties 

Scheme. Both are risk pooling schemes under which the Foundation Trust pays an annual contribution to the NHS 

Litigation Authority and in return receives assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership 

contributions, and any ‘excesses’ payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating expenses when the 

liability arises. 

For buildings and contents, the Foundation Trust also has 'top up' insurance provided through a commercial insurer 

that insures from the NHSLA cover limit of £1m to total reinstatement value. The annual premium is charged to 

operating expenses when the liability arises.

Other commercial insurance held by the Foundation Trust includes Group Accident Scheme insurance , Commercial 

Combined insurance, Directors and Officers Liability insurance and Goods in Transit (excluding marine) insurance , 

The annual premium and any excesses payable are charged to operating expenses when the liability arises.
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Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

EU Emissions Trading Scheme

The Foundation Trust is not a member of the EU Emission Trading Scheme

Contingencies 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by 

one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Foundation Trust. A contingent asset is 

disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only 

by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 

Foundation Trust, or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that a payment will be 

required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. A 

contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of payment is remote.

Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present value. 

1.28 Financial Assets 

Financial assets are recognised when the Foundation Trust becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in 

the case of trade receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered.  Financial assets are derecognised 

when the contractual rights have expired or the asset has been transferred.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value.  

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through income and 

expenditure; held to maturity investments; available for sale financial assets, and loans and receivables.  The 

classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial 

recognition.

Financial Assets at 'Fair Value Through Income & Expenditure'
Embedded derivatives that have different risks and characteristics to their host contracts, and contracts with 

embedded derivatives whose separate value cannot be ascertained, are treated as financial assets at fair value 

through Income & Expenditure. They are held at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in calculating 

the Foundation Trust’s surplus or deficit for the year. The net gain or loss incorporates any interest earned on the 

financial asset. 

The Foundation Trust does not hold any of this class of assets.

Held to maturity investments
Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed 

maturity, and there is a positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.  After initial recognition, they are held at 

amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest is recognised using the effective 

interest method.

The Foundation Trust does not hold any of this class of assets.

Available for sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, including transaction costs, and measured 

subsequently at fair value, with gains or losses recognised in reserves and reported in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income as an item of ‘other comprehensive income’. When items classified as ‘available-for-sale’ are 

sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised are transferred from reserves and recognised in 

‘Finance Costs’ in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.]

The Foundation Trust does not hold any of this class of assets.
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Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

1.28 Financial Assets (continued)

Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments with are not quoted in 

an active market. They are included in current assets.

The Foundation Trust's loans and receivables comprise: current investments, cash and cash equivalents, NHS 

Debtors, accrued income and other debtors.

Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value, net of transactions costs, and are measured subsequently 

at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts exactly 

estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or, when appropriate, a shorter period, 

to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

 

Interest on loans and receivables is calculated using the effective interest method and credited to the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference 

between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s 

original effective interest rate.  The loss is recognised in expenditure and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced 

through a provision for impairment of receivables or directly to expenditure as appropriate.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively 

to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed 

through expenditure to the extent that the carrying amount of the receivable at the date of the impairment is reversed 

does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

1.29 Financial Liabilities  
Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the Foundation Trust becomes party to 

the contractual provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services 

have been received.  Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability 

has been paid or has expired.

Loans from the Department of Health are recognised at historical cost.  Otherwise, financial liabilities are initially 

recognised at fair value.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Embedded derivatives that have different risks and characteristics to their host contracts, and contracts with 

embedded derivatives whose separate value cannot be ascertained, are treated as financial liabilities at fair value 

through profit and loss.  They are held at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in the Foundation 

Trust’s surplus/deficit.  The net gain or loss incorporates any interest payable on the financial liability.

Other Financial Liabilities

After initial recognition, all other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 

method, except for loans from Department of Health, which are carried at historic cost.  The effective interest rate is 

the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the life of the asset, to the net carrying 

amount of the financial liability.  Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

Corporation Tax 

The Foundation Trust derives income from Private patient work in accordance with the terms of its Authorisation from 

Monitor. Authorised private healthcare services fall under Section 14(1) of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 as 

goods and services relating to the provision of healthcare and are not therefore taxable.

Other non patient related trading activities such as the provision of catering for staff and patients and car parking are 

provided by third parties who recharge the Foundation Trust and these are treated as an expense.

As a consequence the Foundation Trust has determined that it has no Corporation tax liability.

Value Added Tax 

Most of the activities of the Foundation Trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply 

and input tax on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or 

included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the 

amounts are stated net of VAT. 

Foreign Exchange 

The functional and presentational currencies of the Foundation Trust are sterling. 

A transaction which is denominated in a foreign currency is translated into the functional currency at the spot 

exchange rate on the date of the transaction. 

Where the Foundation Trust has assets or liabilities denominated in a foreign currency at the Statement of Financial 

Position date: 

• monetary items (other than financial instruments measured at ‘fair value through income and expenditure’) are 

translated at the spot exchange rate on 31 March 2012; 

• non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost are translated using the spot exchange rate at the 

date of the transaction; and 

• non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at fair value are translated using the spot exchange rate at the date 

the fair value was determined. 

Exchange gains or losses on monetary items (arising on settlement of the transaction or on re-translation at the 

Statement of Financial Position date) are recognised in income or expense in the period in which they arise. 

Exchange gains or losses on non-monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the same manner as other gains 

and losses on these items.

Third Party Assets 

Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the accounts since 

the NHS foundation trust has no beneficial interest in them. However, they are disclosed in a separate note to the 

accounts in accordance with the requirements of HM Treasury’s FReM.

Public Dividend Capital 

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at 

the time of establishment of the predecessor NHS trust. HM Treasury has determined that PDC is not a financial 

instrument within the meaning of IAS 32.

A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the NHS foundation trust, is payable as public dividend capital 

dividend. The charge is calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets 

of the NHS foundation trust during the financial year. Relevant net assets are calculated as the value of all assets 

less the value of all liabilities, except for (i) donated assets (including lottery funded assets), (ii) net cash balances 

held with the Government Banking Services (GBS), excluding cash balances held in GBS accounts that relate to a 

short-term working capital facility, and (iii) any PDC dividend balance receivable or payable. In accordance with the 

requirements laid down by the Department of Health (as the issuer of PDC), the dividend for the year is calculated on 

the actual average relevant net assets as set out in the ‘pre-audit’ version of the annual accounts. The dividend thus 

calculated is not revised should any adjustment to net assets occur as a result the audit of the annual accounts.



Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

1.35 Losses and Special Payments

 

1.36 Subsidiaries

 

1.37 Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been Adopted
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2 Operating Segments  

2011/12 2010/11

£000 £000

The main sources of income received were:-

North West Specialist Commissioning Team        73,830 70,386

Health Commission Wales                                14,987 17,191

2011/12 2010/11

£000 £000

Income 106,799 106,159

Surplus/(Deficit) 588 860

Net Assets: 68,567 67,160

3 Income generation activities

The Foundation Trust does not have any material income generation activities.

 

4 Operating Income analysed by classification 2011/12 2010/11

£000 £000

Elective income 48,485 49,261

Non elective income 29,746 30,222

Outpatient Income 12,359 8,888

Other NHS clinical income* 7,721 8,656

Private patient income 2,990 2,993

Other non-protected clinical income 1,244 1,303

Total Income from activities 102,545 101,323

Research & Development 730 566

Education & Training 2,737 2,756

Charitable & other contributions to expenditure 65 0

Non-patient care services to other bodies 75
Transfer from  Donated Asset reserve in respect of 

depreciation on donated assets 0 0

Reversal of impaiments of Property, plant & equipment 96 988

Other Income 551 526

Total other operating income 4,254 4,836

Total Operating income 106,799 106,159

*Other NHS Clinical Income is analysed in note 5 below

5 Analysis of Other NHS Clinical Income 2011/12 2010/11

£000 £000

Drugs and Devices - Non Contracted 342 881

NHS Trust Income - SLA's 1,436 1,521

PCT Income - Non Contracted 1,586 1,753

Cystic Fibrosis Inpatients 3,896 3,789  

Non recurent Winter Pressures/Performance 461 600

Patient transport service 0 112

7,721 8,656

6 Private Patient Income 2011/12 2010/11

Base Year 

2002/03

 

£000

Private Patient Income 2,990 2,994 2,876

Total Clinical Income 99,555 96,444 54,831

Proportion of private patient income as a percentage of 

Clinical Income 3.0% 3.1% 5.2%

The Foundation Trust has one segment for the provision of healthcare which generated income of 

£106.79m

Section 44 of the National Health Service Act 2006 requIres that the proportion of Private Patient Income to 

the total patient related Income of the NHS Foundation Trust should not exceed its proportion whilst the body 

was an NHS Trust in 2002/03 (the Private Patient Cap). The Foundation Trust is compliant with this 

requirement during the year.

Healthcare Segment
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7 Revenue from patient care activities

Year ended 
31st March 

2012

Year ended 

31st March 

2011

£000 £000

NHS Foundation Trusts 299 286

NHS Trusts 1,733 1,930

Strategic Health Authorities 0 0

Department of Health  4
Primary Care Trusts 82,315 78,719

NHS Other 8 11

Local authorities 1 4

Non NHS:

      - Private patients 2,990 2,994

      - Overseas patients (non reciprocal) 0 7

      - NHS Injury Scheme 1 0

      - Other* 15,194 17,372

102,545 101,323

* Other Operating Income consists mainly of income received from Health Commission Wales

8 Other Operating Revenue

Year ended 
31st March 

2012

Year ended 

31st March 

2011

£000 £000

Research & Development 730 566  

Education and training 2,737 2,756

Charitable and other contributions to expenditure 65 0

Non-patient care services to other bodies 75
Transfer from donated asset reserve in respect of 

depreciation on donated assets  0 0

Reversal of impairments of property, plant and equipment 96 988

Other income* 551 526

4,254 4,836

*Other Operating revenue Income is analysed in Note 9 below

9 Analysis of Other Operating Revenue - Other income

Year ended 
31st March 

2012

Year ended 

31st March 

2011

£000 £000

Estates recharges 0 0

Pharmacy sales 15 18

Staff accommodation rentals 0 0

Clinical tests 0 0

Clinical excellence awards 489 500

Other 47 8

551 526

9.1 Income from activities arising from mandatory and non-mandatory services

Year ended 
31st March 

2012

Year ended 

31st March 

2011

£000 £000

Income from Activities - Mandatory Services 94,158 93,753

Income from Activities - Non-Mandatory Services 8,386 7,570  

102,544 101,323
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10 Revenue   
  

Revenue is predominantly from the supply of services.  Revenue from the sale of 

goods is not material.

11 Operating Expenses 

Year ended 
31st March 
2012

Year ended 

31st March 

2011

£000 £000

Services from NHS Foundation Trusts 183 271

Services from NHS Trusts 4,440 4,253

Services from Primary Care Trusts 165 134

Services from other NHS bodies 2 0

Employee Expenses - Executive directors 422 238

Employee Expenses - Non-executive directors 71 74

Employee Expenses - Staff 57,179 55,527

Drugs costs 4,174 4,181

Supplies and services - clinical (excluding drug costs) 26,102 27,006

Supplies and services - general 1,566 1,388

Establishment 917 828

Research and Development 0 10

Transport 73 67

Premises 2,742 1,876

Increase/(decrease) in provision for impairment of receivables 320 140

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 4,409 5,126

Amortisation on intangible assets 58 27

Impairments of property, plant and equipment 39 671

Audit fees 60 65

Other auditor's remuneration 0 20

Clinical negligence 354 429

Legal fees 156 109

Consultancy costs 296 139

Training courses and conferences 172 314

Patient travel 12 123

Car parking and Security 285 248

Redundancy 51 0

Insurance 102 102

Other services, eg external payroll 81 0

Losses, ex gratia & special payments 88 71

Other 79 208

104,598 103,645
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12 Audit Fees and Other Remuneration

Year ended 
31st March 

2012

Year ended 

31st March 

2011

£000 £000

Statutory Audit 60 65

Other Auditors remuneration   

Financial reporting evaluation 0 20

60 85

There is no limited liability agreement in place with the external auditors (Audit Commission).

13 Operating leases

 

13.1 As lessee
 

Payments recognised as an expense

Year ended 
31st March 

2012

Year ended 

31st March 

2011

£000 £000

Minimum lease payments 49 37

Contingent rents 0 0

49 37

Contingent rent on excess mileage on the 3 leased cars is as follows;  

 Excess Mileage 

Excess 
mileage 
charge excl 
VAT

Lease car 1 10000 10p per mile

Lease car 2 11000 6p per mile

Lease car 3 20000 14.49p per mile

Total future minimum lease payments

Year ended 
31st March 

2012

Year ended 

31st March 

2011

£000 £000

Payable:

Not later than one year 6 26

Between one and five years 11 24

After 5 years 0 0

Total 17 50

There are no future sublease payments expected to be received  

13.2  As lessor

The Foundation Trust does not have operating leases as a lessor.

The Foundation Trust has leases on 3 cars covering 3 year agreements commencing from June 2009, June 

2010 and February 2011. The Foundation Trust also has a lease agreement on a van commencing from 

May 2007 for a period of 5 years. In addition the Foundation Trust has photocopiers which were under 5 

year agreements. Where the 5 year lease term has expired the Trust has agreed to extend leases but there 

is no ongoing contractual commitment.
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14 Employee benefits and staff numbers

14.1 Employee expenses Year ended 31st March 2012 Year ended 31st March 2011

Total Permanently 
Employed

Other Total Permanently 

Employed

Other

Salaries and wages 48,042 46,532 1,510 46,526 45,874 652

Social Security Costs 3,716 3,506 210 3,415 3,324 91

Employer contributions to NHS Pension scheme 4,809 4,809 0 4,668 4,668 0

Pension costs - other contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other post employment benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other employment benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0

Termination benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0

Agency and contract staff 1,254 0 1,254 1,324 0 1,324
Total gross employee benefits 57,821 54,847 2,974 55,933 53,866 2,067

less income in respect of Salaries and wages where netted off 

expenditure (138) (138) 0 (139) (139) 0

less income in respect of Social security costs where netted off 

expenditure (13) (13) 0 (13) (13) 0

less income in respect of Pension cost where netted off 

expenditure - defined contribution plans

Employers contributions to NHS Pensions (18) (18) 0 (15) (15) 0

less income in respect of Pension cost where netted off 

expenditure- other contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0

less income in respect of Other post employment benefits where 

netted off expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 0

less income in respect of Other employment benefits where 

netted off expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 0

less income in respect of Termination benefits where netted off 

expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 0

less income in respect of Agency/contract staff where netted off 

expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total net employee benefits 57,652 54,678 2,974 55,766 53,699 2,067

Employee benefits capitalised as part of assets 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs 57,652 54,678 2,974 55,766 53,699 2,067

14.2 Average number of people employed Year ended 31st March 2012 Year ended 31st March 2011
Total Permanently 

Employed
Other Total Permanently 

Employed

Other

Number Number Number Number Number Number

Medical and dental 141 132 9 140 130 10

Administration and estates 283 269 14 271 263 8

Healthcare assistants and other support staff 217 211 6 217 214 3

Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff 522 505 17 510 495 15

Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff 222 212 10 209 200 9

Social care staff 0 0 0 6 3 3

Other 0 0 0 2 1 1
Total 1,386 1,329 57 1,355 1,306 49

Of the above - staff engaged on capital projects 0 0 0 0 0 0

 

14.3 Management and Administration Costs 

Year ended 
31st March 

2012
Year ended 31st 

March 2011

£m £m

Management costs 5.694 5,399

Income 106.799 106,320  

Percentage of Management Costs to Income 5.33% 5.08%
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14.4 Staff Sickness Absence
Year ended 
31st March 

2012
Year ended 31st 

March 2011  

Days Lost (Long Term) 15,949 13,382  

Days Lost (Short Term) 7,308 8,222  

Total Days Lost 23,257 21,604  

Total Staff Years 1,281 1,306  

 

Average working days lost 18.2 16.5  

Total Staff Employed in Period (Headcount) 1,580 1,540  

Total Staff Employed in Period with no absence (Headcount) 731 660  

Percentage Staff with no Sick Leave 46.27% 42.86%  

14.5 Exit Packages agreed in 2011-12

Exit package cost band (including any special payment 
element)

*Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies

*Number of 
other 

departures 
agreed

Total number of 
exit packages 
by cost band

*Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies

*Number of 
other 

departures 
agreed

Total number of 
exit packages 
by cost band

Number Number Number Number Number Number
Less than £10,000 0 2 2 0 0 0
£10,001-£25,000 1 0 1 0 3 3
£25,001-£50,000 1 0 1 0 2 2
£50,001-£100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
£150,001 - £200,000 0 1 1 0 0 0
>£200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total number of exit packages by type (total cost 2 3 5 0 5 5
Total resource cost (£000s) 51 215 266 0 114 114

Where the Trust has agreed early retirements, the additional costs are met by the Trust and not by the NHS pensions scheme. During the year there were no early

retirements.

Ill-health retirement costs are met by the NHS pensions scheme and are not included in the table.

Exit costs include payments made during the year and a provision  for an Exit package in respect of a Senior officer which has been agreed by the Board  which will be paid in 

2012/13.

 

31st March 2012 31st March 2011
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Pension costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. Details of the benefits payable under these
provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit
scheme that covers NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England and
Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme
assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS Body of
participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.

The scheme is subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years (until 2004, every five years) and an accounting valuation every year.

An outline of these follows:-

a) Full actuarial (funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the scheme (taking into account its recent
demographic experience), and to recommend the contribution rates to be paid by employers and scheme members. The last such
valuation, which determined current contribution rates was undertaken as at 31 March 2004 and covered the period from 1 April 1999 to
that date. The conclusion from the 2004 valuation was that the scheme had accumulated a notional deficit of £3.3 billion against the
notional assets as at 31 March 2004.

In order to defray the costs of benefits, employers pay contributions at 14% of pensionable pay and most employees had up to April 2008
paid 6%, with manual staff paying 5%.

Following the full actuarial review by the Government Actuary undertaken as at 31 March 2004, and after consideration of changes to the
NHS Pension Scheme taking effect from 1 April 2008, his Valuation report recommended that employer contributions could continue at the
existing rate of 14% of pensionable pay, from 1 April 2008, following the introduction of employee contributions on a tiered scale from 5% up
to 8.5% of their pensionable pay depending on total earnings.

On advice from the scheme actuary, scheme contributions may be varied from time to time to reflect changes in the scheme’s liabilities.

b) Accounting valuation

A valuation of the scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary as at the end of the reporting period by updating the results
of the full actuarial valuation.

Between the full actuarial valuations at a two-year midpoint, a full and detailed member data-set is provided to the scheme actuary. At this
point the assumptions regarding the composition of the scheme membership are updated to allow the scheme liability to be valued.

The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2012, is based on detailed membership data as at 31 March 2008 (the latest midpoint)
updated to 31 March 2012 with summary global member and accounting data.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actuary report, which forms part of the annual NHS
Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Resource Account, published annually. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions
website. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.

c) Scheme provisions

The NHS Pension Scheme provided defined benefits, which are summarised below. This list is an illustrative guide only, and is not intended
to detail all the benefits provided by the Scheme or the specific conditions that must be met before these benefits can be obtained:

The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 1/80th for the 1995 section and of the best of the last three
years pensionable pay for each year of service, and 1/60th for the 2008 section of reckonable pay per year of membership. Members who
are practitioners as defined by the Scheme Regulations have their annual pensions based upon total pensionable earnings over the
relevant pensionable service.

With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose to give up some of their annual pension for an additional tax free lump sum, up to a
maximum amount permitted under HMRC rules. This new provision is known as “pension commutation”.

Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the Pensions (Increase) Act 1971, and are based on changes in retail
prices in the twelve months ending 30 September in the previous calendar year.

Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to members of the scheme who are permanently incapable of fulfilling their
duties effectively through illness or infirmity. A death gratuity of twice final year’s pensionable pay for death in service, and five times their
annual pension for death after retirement is payable.

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the
liability for the additional costs is charged to the statement of comprehensive income at the time the Trust commits itself to the retirement,
regardless of the method of payment.

Members can purchase additional service in the NHS Scheme and contribute to money purchase AVC’s run by the Scheme’s approved
providers or by other Free Standing Additional Voluntary Contributions (FSAVC) providers.

15.
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16 Retirements due to ill-health

17 Investment Revenue

Year ended 
31st March 

2012

Year ended 

31st March 

2011

£000 £000

Interest revenue:

Bank accounts 150 118

Total 150 118

18 Other Gains and Losses

There are no other gains or losses

19 Finance Costs

Year ended 
31st March 

2012

Year ended 

31st March 

2011

£000 £000

Interest on obligations under finance leases 36 42

Total  36 42

20 Better Payment Practice Code

20.1 Better Payment Practice Code - measure of compliance Year Ended 31st March 2012 Year ended 31st March 2011

Number £000s Number £000s

Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in the period 31,464 46,531 33,571 44,582  

Total Non NHS trade invoices paid within target 30,046 45,102 32,169 43,522

Percentage of Non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 95.5% 96.9% 95.8% 97.6%

Total NHS trade invoices paid in the period 928 12,659 999 13,369

Total NHS trade invoices paid within target 848 12,518 880 10,470

Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target 91.4% 98.9% 88.1% 78.3%

The Foundation Trust has signed up to the Government’s 10 day payment commitment.

20.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998

Year ended 
31st March 

2012

Year ended 

31st March 

2011   

£000 £000   

 
Amounts included within other interest payable arising from claims made 

under this legislation. 0 0
 

Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs under this legislation 0 0

Total 0 0  

The Better Payment Practice Code requires The Foundation Trust to aim to pay all undisputed invoices by the due date or within 30 

days of receipt of goods or a valid invoice, whichever is later.

For the year ended 31st March 2012 there was 1 early retirement at a cost of £150k from The NHS Foundation Trust agreed on the 

grounds of ill-health. (31st March 2011 nil)
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21 Property, plant and equipment

2011/12:

Land Buildings 
excluding 
dwellings

Dwellings Assets under 
construct and 

poa

Plant and 
machinery 

Information 
technology 

Furniture & 
fittings 

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost or valuation at 1st April 2011 3,235 44,116 529 1,155 19,833 4,076 2,114 75,058
Prior period adjustment 0 (963)  (27)  0  (32)  0  0 (1,022) 
Additions purchased 0 1,468 0 2,542 1,821 881 0 6,712
Additions donated 0 0 0 0 25 0 0 25
Reclassifications 0 958  0  (1,059)  0  101  0 0
Revaluations 0 (571) 8 0 86 0 0 (477)
Impairments 0 (25)  0  0  0  0  0 (25) 
Disposals 0 0 0 0 (1,885) (352) 0 (2,237) 
At 31st March 2012 3,235 44,983 510 2,638 19,848 4,706 2,114 78,034

Depreciation at 1st April 2011 0 963 27 0 11,259 2,992 1,431 16,672
Prior period adjustment 0 (963) (27) 0 (32) 0 0 (1,022) 
Charged during the year 0 1,358 20 0 2,459 387 185 4,409
Impairments 0 39 0 0 0 0 0 39
Reversal of impairments 0 (96) 0 0 0 0 0 (96) 

Cumulative depreciation adjustment following 

revaluation 0 (1,301) (20) 0 0 0 0 (1,321) 
Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Disposals 0 0 0 0 (1,885) (352) 0 (2,237) 
Depreciation at 31st March 2012 0 0 0 0 11,801 3,027 1,616 16,444

Net book value 
Purchased 3,235 44,590 208 2,638 6,585 1,679 498 59,433
Finance Leased 0 0 0 0 1,038 0 0 1,038
Donated 0 393 302 0 424 0 0 1,119
Total at 31st March 2012 3,235 44,983 510 2,638 8,047 1,679 498 61,590

Revaluation Reserve Balance for Property, Plant & Equipment
Land Buildings 

excluding 
dwellings

Dwellings Plant and 
machinery 

Information 
technology 

Furniture & 
fittings 

Total 
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

At 31 March 2011 1,903 5,998 192 1,150 0 174 9,417
Prior period adjustments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Merger adjustments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
At 1 April 2011 restated 1,903 5,998 192 1,150 0 174 9,417
Movement in year 0 705 28 (319) 0 (24) 390
At 31 March 2012 1,903 6,703 220 831 0 150 9,807

21.1 Analysis of Property, plant and equipment

Net Book Value

Land Buildings 
excluding 
dwellings

Dwellings Assets under 
construct and 

poa

Plant and 
machinery 

Information 
technology 

Furniture & 
fittings 

Total

NBV - Protected Assets at 31st March 2012 3,235 41,185 0 0 0 0 0 44,420
NBV - Unprotected Assets at 31st March 2012 0 3,798 510 2,638 8,047 1,679 498 17,170

Total at 31st March 2012 3,235 44,983 510 2,638 8,047 1,679 498 61,590

Protected assets are used in the provision of mandatory services. Unprotected assets relate to dwellings and the land associated with them 

The Prior period adjustment relates to an amendment to the opening balances to Gross Book Value and accumulated depreciation to reflect the impact of the District 

Valuer's revaluation effective from 31st March 2011.
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21.2 Property, plant and equipment

2010/11:

Land Buildings 
excluding 
dwellings

Dwellings Assets under 
construct and 

poa

Plant and 
machinery 

Information 
technology 

Furniture & 
fittings 

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost or valuation at 1st April 2010 3,235 41,504 519 584 22,608 3,396 2,096 73,942

Additions purchased 0 1,773 0 1,065 2,114 563 18 5,533

Additions donated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications 0 80 0 (494) 297 117 0 0

Revaluations 0 0 0 0 264 0 0 264

Impairments 0 771 10 0 0 0 0 781

Disposals 0 (12) 0 0 (5,450) 0 0 (5,462) 

At 31st March 2011 3,235 44,116 529 1,155 19,833 4,076 2,114 75,058

Depreciation at 1st April 2010 0 0 0 0 13,543 2,538 1,242 17,323

Charged during the year 0 1,292 27 0 3,164 454 189 5,126

Impairments 0 671 0 0 0 0 0 671

Reversal of impairments 0 (988) 0 0 0 0 0 (988) 

Disposals 0 (12) 0 0 (5,448) 0 0 (5,460)

Depreciation at 31st March 2011 0 963 27 0 11,259 2,992 1,431 16,672

Net book value 
Purchased 3,235 42,776 207 1,155 7,665 1,084 670 56,792

Finance Leased 0 0 0 0 375 0 0 375

Donated 0 377 295 0 534 0 13 1,219

Total at 31st March 2011 3,235 43,153 502 1,155 8,574 1,084 683 58,386

Revaluation Reserve Balance for Property, Plant & Equipment
Land Buildings Dwellings Plant and Information Furniture & Total 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
At 1st April 2010 (restated) 1,903 5,416 9 886 0 174 8,388
Movement in year 0 582 183 264 0 0 1,029
At 31 March 2011 1,903 5,998 192 1,150 0 174 9,417

21.3 Analysis of Property, plant and equipment

Net Book Value

Land Buildings 
excluding 
dwellings

Dwellings Assets under 
construct and 

poa

Plant and 
machinery 

Information 
technology 

Furniture & 
fittings 

Total

NBV - Protected Assets at 31st March 2011 3,235 39,578 0 0 0 0 0 42,813

NBV - Unprotected Assets at 31st March 2011 0 3,575 502 1,155 8,574 1,084 683 15,573

Total at 31st March 2011 3,235 43,153 502 1,155 8,574 1,084 683 58,386

Protected assets are used in the provision of mandatory services. Unprotected assets relate to  dwellings and the land associated with them 
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21.4 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Professional valuations are carried out by the District valuers of the Revenue and Customs Government 

Department. The valuations are carried out in accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS)

Appraisal and Valuation Manual insofar as these terms are consistent with the agreed requirements of the

Department of Health and HM Treasury.The Trust has had its land and buildings revalued using Modern Equivalent 

Asset methodology at 31st March 2012.

 

Economic Lives of Fixed Assets Min life Max life
Years Years

Buildings exc dwellings 1 55

Dwellings 22 37

Assets under Construction & POA 3 25

Plant & Machinery 0 10

Information Technology 0 5

Furniture and Fittings 0 9

The Foundation Trust has not written down any assets to recoverable amount nor has there been reversals of such write 

downs in the year.

The Foundation Trust holds all property at an existing use valuation and does not have open market valuations which are 

materially different from these valuations.

The Foundation Trust holds temporarily idle assets but these are considered to be of immaterial value.

The following table discloses the range of remaining economic lives of various assets 
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22 Intangible assets

Computer
Assets under 
Construction Total

software -
purchased

2011/12:

£000 £000 £000 

Gross cost at 1st April 2011 370 0 370
Additions 101 769 870
Gross cost at 31st March 2012 471 769 1,240

Amortisation at 1st April 2011 187 0 187
Charged during the year 58 0 58
Amortisation at 31st March 2012 245 0 245

Net book value
Purchased 226 769 995
Donated 0 0 0
Total at 31st March 2012 226 769 995

2010/11:

£000 £000 £000 

Gross cost at 1st April 2010 219 0 219

Prior period adjustment (15) 0 (15) 

Gross cost at 1st April 2010 restated 204 0 204

Additions 166 0 166

Gross cost at 31st March 2011 370 0 370

Amortisation at 1st April 2010 175 0 175

Prior period adjustment (15) 0 (15) 

Gross cost at 1st April 2010 restated 160 0 160

Charged during the year 27 0 27

Amortisation at 31st March 2011 187 0 187

Net book value
Purchased 183 0 183

Donated 0 0 0

Total at 31st March 2011 183 0 183

Assets under construction relates to licenses associated with the Electronic Patient record capital scheme.

These assets have useful economic lives of no more than 5 years.

22.1 Revaluation Reserve Balance for Intangible Assets
  

There is no Revaluation Reserve for Intangible Assets

   

23 Impairments

Within this sum there has been ;-

  revaluation reserve.

• Negative impairments charged to the revaluation reserve of £25k.                                 .

Intangible fixed assets held for operational use are valued at historic cost and are depreciated over the estimated useful life of 

the asset on a straight line basis. The carrying value of intangible fixed assets is reviewed for impairment at the end of the first 

full year following acquisition and in other periods if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be 

recoverable.

Purchased computer software licences are capitalised as intangible fixed assets where expenditure of at least £5,000 is 

incurred. They are amortised over a shorter of the term of the licence and their useful economic lives.

The Foundation Trust engaged the Valuation Office Agency to revalue its estate using Modern Equivalent Asset methodology 

effective from 31st March 2012. There has been an overall upward revaluation by £790k, 

• reversal of prior year impairments of £96k which have been credited to income..

• negative impairments of £39k charged to expenditure.

• upward revaluations of (not previously impaired) purchased buildings of £758k credited to the                                          .
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24  Analysis of impairments and reversals recognised in 2011-12 31st March 2012
Total
£000

Property, Plant and Equipment impairments and reversals taken to SoCI
Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0

Over-specification of assets 0

Abandonment of assets in the course of construction 0

Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit 0

Unforeseen obsolescence 0

Loss as a result of catastrophe 0

Other (57) 

Changes in market price 0

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure (57) 

Property, Plant and Equipment impairments and reversals charged to the Revaluation Reserve
Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0

Over Specification of Assets 0

Abandonment of assets in the course of construction 0

Unforeseen obsolescence 0

Loss as a result of catastrophe 0

Other (733) 

Changes in market price 0

Total impairments for PPE charged to reserves (733) 

Total Impairments of Property, Plant and Equipment (790) 

Total Impairments charged to Revaluation Reserve (733) 

Total Impairments charged to SoCI - DEL 0

Total Impairments charged to SoCI - AME (57) 

Overall Total Impairments (790) 
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25 Investment Property
The Trust does not have Investment Property

26 Commitments

26.1 Capital commitments

Contracted capital commitments at 31 March not otherwise included in these financial statements:

31st March 2012 31st March 2011

£000 £000

Property, plant and equipment 4,674 881

Intangible assets 0 0

Total 4,674 881

26.2 Other financial commitments 

27 Intra-Government and other balances Current Non-current Current Non-current 
£000s £000s £000s £000s

Balances with other Central Government Bodies 496 0 1,825 0

Balances with Local Authorities 0 0 62 0

Balances with NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts 322 0 1,825 0

Balances with Public Corporations and Trading Funds 0 0 0 0

Balances with bodies external to government 1,687 0 2,471 0
At 31st March 2012 2,505 0 6,183 0
prior period:
Balances with other Central Government Bodies 144 0 1,718 0

Balances with Local Authorities 1 0 0 0

Balances with NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts 490 0 1,786 0

Balances with Public Corporations and Trading Funds 0 0 0 0

Balances with bodies external to government 936 0 3,066 0
At 31st March 2011 1,571 0 6,570 0

The trust has not entered into non-cancellable contracts (which are not leases or PFI contracts or other 

service concession arrangements) as defined within IFRIC 12

Receivables Payables
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28 Inventories Drugs Consumables Energy Work in progress Loan Equipment Other Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2011 555 3,471 0 0 0 0 4,026
Prior period adjustment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Merger adjustment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Restated at 1 April 2011 555 3,471 0 0 0 0 4,026
Additions 9,748 19,123 0 0 0 0 28,871
Inventories recognised as an expense in the period (9,853) (20,145) 0 0 0 0 (29,998) 
Write-down of inventories (including losses) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reversal of write-down previously taken to SoCI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers (to)/from other bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers (to) Foundation Trusts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Balance at 31 March 2012 450 2,449 0 0 0 0 2,899

 Inventories Drugs Consumables Energy Work in progress Loan Equipment Other Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2010 537 2,265 0 0 0 0 2,802
Prior period adjustment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Merger adjustment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Restated at 1 April 2010 537 2,265 0 0 0 0 2,802
Additions 7,895 29,292 0 0 0 0 37,187
Inventories recognised as an expense in the period (7,877) (28,086) 0 0 0 0 (35,963) 

Write-down of inventories (including losses) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reversal of write-down previously taken to SoCNI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers (to)/from other bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers (to) Foundation Trusts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Balance at 31 March 2011 555 3,471 0 0 0 0 4,026

29 Trade and other receivables

29.1  Trade and other receivables
31st March 2012 31st March 2011 31st March 2012 31st March 2011

£000 £000 £000 £000

NHS receivables 1,409 1,141 0 0

Other receivables with related parties 1,629 865 0 0

Provision for impaired receivables (560) (240) 0 0

VAT 382 143 0

Prepayments 529 349 0 0

Accrued income 94 275 0 0

PDC receivable 68 51 0 0

Other receivables 104 22 0 0
Total 3,655 2,606 0 0

 

funds. These are considered to be good quality receivables.

The Foundation Trust does not have financial assets that would otherwise be overdue for payment or impaired, whose terms have been renegotiated 

other than contracts with main commissioners which are invoiced at a standard amount each month based on an agreed level of  activity. There may be 

credit notes issued periodically during the year where activity has been less than contracted or additional invoices where activity has exceeded 

contracted performance.  

 

Current

The great majority of trade is with Primary Care Trusts, as commissioners for NHS patient care services.  As Primary Care Trusts are funded by 

government to buy NHS patient care services, no credit scoring of them is considered necessary.

Other trade receivables consists of transactions with Health Commission Wales (for the provision of patient care services in Wales),

Insurance companies and private individuals for the provision of private patient care services and recharges from charitable 

Non current
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29.2 Provision for impairment of receivables 31st March 2012 31st March 2011

£000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2011 240 109

Adjustments 0 0

Restated balance at 1 April 2011 240 109

Amount written off during the year 0 (9) 

Amount recovered during the year 0 0

(Increase)/decrease in receivables impaired 320 140

Balance at 31 March 560 240

29.3 Impaired receivables past their due date 31st March 2012 31st March 2011

£000 £000

By up to 30 days 143 118

By 30 to 60 days 0 0

By 60 to 90 days 0 0

By 90 to 180 days 0 0

By over 180 days 417 122

Total 560 240

The Foundation Trust does not hold collateral in respect of any outstanding receivables

29.4 Receivables past their due date but not impaired 31st March 2012 31st March 2011

£000 £000

By up to 30 days 843 378

By 30 to 60 days 87 276

By 60 to 90 days 756 58

By 90 to 180 days 72 177

By over 180 days 13 99

Total 1,771 988

The Foundation Trust does not hold collateral in respect of any outstanding receivables

30 Other financial assets

The Foundation Trust has no other Financial Assets 

31 Other current assets

The Foundation Trust has no other Current Assets 

 

32 Cash and Cash Equivalents 31st March 2012 31st March 2011

£000 £000

Balance at start of period 17,264 13,708

Net change in year 215 3,556

Balance at end of period 17,479 17,264

Made Up Of
Cash at commercial banks and in hand 58 14

Cash with the Government Banking Service 17,421 17,250

Other current investments 0 0

Cash and Cash Equivalents as in Statement of Financial Position 17,479 17,264

Bank overdraft 0 0

Cash and Cash Equivalents as in Statement of Cash Flows 17,479 17,264

33 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

There are no Non Current Assets held for sale.

34 Trade and other payables
31st March 2012 31st March 2011

£000 £000

Receipts in Advance 21 (2)

NHS payables - revenue  2,854 2,029

NHS payables - capital 0 0

Other trade payables - revenue 2,924 2,208

Other trade payables - capital 837 999

Taxes payable 1,281 1,132

NHS Pension Scheme Liability 606 586

Other payables 311 858

Accruals 5,593 4,865

Total 14,427 12,675

 

Current
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35 Borrowings Non-current
31st March 2012 31st March 2011 31st March 2012 31st March 2011

£000 £000 £000 £000

Finance lease liabilities 287 220 798 170

Total 287 220 798 170

36 Finance lease obligations

Amounts payable under finance leases:
31st March 2012 31st March 2011 31st March 2012 31st March 2011

£000 £000 £000 £000

Within one year 343 242 288 220

Between one and five years 821 173 682 170

After five years 117 0 115 0

Less future finance charges        (196) (25) 0 0

Present value of minimum lease payments 1,085 390 1,085 390

Included in:

  Current borrowings (287) 220 (287) 220

  Non-current borrowings (798) 170 (798) 170
(1,085) 390 (1,085) 390

The Foundation Trust does not have sublease arrangements.

37 Finance lease receivables (i.e. as lessor)

The Foundation Trust does not have finance leases as a lessor.

38 Finance Lease Commitments

39 Other Financial Liabilities

40 Deferred Income
31 March 2012 31 March 2011 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

£000 £000 £000 £000

Opening balance at 01/04/11 1570 1092 0 0

Deferred income addition 1656 1654 0 0

Release to SOCI (1,604) (1,176) 0 0

Current deferred Income at 31 March 2012 1,622 1,570 0 0

Total other liabilities (current and non-current) 1,622 1,570

41 Provisions
31st March 2012 31st March 2011 31st March 2012 31st March 2011

£000 £000 £000 £000

Legal claims 20 30 0 0

Equal pay 556 576 0 0

Other 341 64 0 0
Total 917 670 0 0

Legal claims Equal pay Other Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

At 1st April 2011 30 576 64 670
Arising during the year 20 0 300 320
Used during the year (25) (19) (24) (68) 
Reversed unused (5) 0 0 (5) 
At 31st March 2012 20 557 340 917

Expected timing of cash flows:
Not later than one year 20 557 340

later than one year and not later than five years 0 0 0

later than five years 0 0 0

Amount Included in the Provisions of the NHS 
Litigation Authority in Respect of Clinical 
Negligence Liabilities: £m
As at 31st March 2012 1,962

As at 31st March 2011 1,567

Current

The Foundation Trust has entered into lease arrangements for medical equipment associated with the Site Development. These leases started from the 

final quarter of 2005/06 and extend for a period of 5 to 7 years. There is no contingent rent arrangement within these lease agreements. The lessor has 

the benefit of the residual value of the assets as these assets are returned at the end of the lease agreement. The leases agreements require the 

Foundation Trust to maintain assets at a certain condition and they have to be returned to the lessor in a reasonable condition. This risk is managed by 

the Foundation Trust, through Insurance cover and Maintenance Contracts.Upon expiry of the original lease term the leased equipment has been either 

returned to the lessor, purchased outright within the Capital Programme or been the subject of a new lease agreement 

The Trust does not have any Finance lease committments at 31st March 2012 as all lease agreements are recognised within Finance lease obligations 

note 36.

Present value of minimum lease payments

Current

The difference between the future minimum lease payments and their present value is the interest rate implicit in the lease which is £196k at 31st March 

2012.

Minimum lease payments

The Trust does not have any other Financial Liabilities

Current Non-current

Non-current
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41 Provisions (continued)

42 Other Liabilities
31st March 2012 31st March 2011

£000 £000

Deferred grants income 38 369

Other deferred income 1,584 1,201

1,622 1,570

 

43 Contingencies

43.1 Contingent Liabilities 31st March 2012 31st March 2011

Other contingent liabilities (10) (14)

Total (10) (14)

The Foundation Trust is advised by the NHS Litigation Authority of the full estimated liability associated with Liability to Third Party 

schemes. This liability is adjusted by applying a percentage probability to the full liability to calculate an amount to be provided. 

The difference between the full liability and the amount provided is recorded as a contingent liability

 

The contingent liability is reviewed each year as part of the advice from the NHSLA on the value of provisions in respect of legal claims

43.2 Contingent Assets
 

The Foundation Trust does not have any contingent assets  .

44 Financial Instruments

44.1 Financial assets At fair value 
through Income & 

Expenditure

Loans and 
receivables

Total

£000 £000 £000

Receivables - NHS excluding non financial assets  1,017 1,017
Receivables - Non NHS excluding non financial assets 0 2,186 2,186
Other investments 0 0 0

 Other financial assets 0 0 0
Cash and cash equivalents 0 17,479 17,479
Total at 31st March 2012 0 20,682 20,682

 

Receivables - NHS excluding non financial assets 0 1,149 1,149

Receivables - Non NHS excluding non financial assets  0 1,261 1,261

Other investments 0 0 0

Other financial assets 0 0 0

Cash at bank and in hand 0 17,265 17,265

Total at 31st March 2011 0 19,675 19,675

44.2 Financial liabilities At fair value 
through Income & 

Expenditure

Other financial 
liabilities

Total

£000 £000 £000

Obligations under finance leases 1085 1,085
NHS payables excluding non financial assets 0 5,856 5,856
Non-NHS payables excluding non financial assets 0 6,337 6,337
Provisions under contract 0 1,121 1,121
Total at 31st March 2012 0 14,399 14,399

Obligations under finance leases 0 390 390

NHS payables excluding non financial assets  0 3,061 3061

Non-NHS payables excluding non financial assets 0 7,674 7674

Provisions under contract 0 670 670

Total at 31st March 2011 0 11,795 11,795

Provisions under contract are held at book value

The Foundation Trust has total provisions at 31st March 2012 of £917k. Within this total the largest provision is for £556k in respect of issues associated with Equal Pay 

Claims which is included within Other provisions.

The timing of payments is dependent on the outcome of  the appeals process following a test case on the national issues associated with Agenda for Change which was 

heard in February 2009, however this process is ongoing.

The Foundation Trust has a provision for Liability to Third Parties legal claims of £20k which is advised by the NHS Litigation Authority. These claims are generally expected 

to be settled within 1 year but may exceptionally take 2 years to settle.

Current

The remainder of provisions of £41k relates mainly to an onerous contract.

Other provisons includes a provision of £200k for an Exit package for a Senior Officer and £100k for the residual value of fixed assets in respect of PACS
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44.3 Financial Risk Management

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the 
period in creating or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.  Because of the continuing service 
provider relationship that the NHS Foundation Trust has with Primary Care Trusts and the way those Primary Care 
Trusts are financed, The Foundation Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities. 
Also financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed 
companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly apply. The Foundation Trust has limited powers to 
borrow or invest surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities 
rather than being held to change the risks facing the Trust in undertaking its activities.

The Foundation Trust’s treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within 
parameters defined formally within the Foundation Trust’s standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the 
Board of Directors. The Foundation Trust's treasury activity is subject to review by The Trusts internal auditors.

Currency Risk
The Foundation Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and 
liabilities being in the UK and sterling based. The Foundation Trust has no overseas operations. The Foundation 
Trust therefore has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.

Interest Rate Risk

The Foundation Trust has minimal borrowings in the form of a small number of leased assets which are based on 
rates of interest fixed at the time of entering into the lease agreements. The Foundation Trust funds its capital 
programme from internally generated funds, therefore does not have any other loans and so the Trust is not 
exposed to significant interest-rate risk.

Credit Risk

Because the majority of the Foundation Trust’s income comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, the 
Foundation Trust has low exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at 31 March 2012 are in receivables 
from customers, as disclosed in the Trade and other receivables note.

Liquidity Risk
The Foundation Trust's operating costs are incurred under contracts with Primary Care Trusts, which are financed 
from resources voted annually by Parliament . The Foundation Trust funds its capital expenditure from funds 
obtained within its prudential borrowing limit. The Foundation Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity 
risks.

44.4 Maturity of Financial Liabilities 

The Foundation Trust has no Financial Liabilities.

45 Events After the Reporting Period

The Foundation Trust has had no material events after the end of the reporting period. 
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